
Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2024 1 
 

 

 

 
 

Bruce 
Barge 

Rainer 
Hoenicke 

Paul 
Asmuth 

Jim 
Lincoln 

Bill 
Pramuk 

Gretchen Stranzl 
McCann 

Karen 
Turjanis 

President Vice 
President 

Director Director Director Director Director 

 

 
Lucas Patzek Corey Utsurogi Tracy Schulze 

Executive Director District Counsel Auditor-Controller 
    

 

 
The Napa County Resource Conservation District (“Napa RCD” or “District”) will hold a regular meeting of its 
Board of Directors in-person at the location noted above. All materials relating to the agenda are available for 
public inspection at the District office Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., 
except for District Holidays. The agenda is available online at: http://naparcd.org/ 
 
The public should attend Board meetings in-person to ensure the ability to observe and participate. Remote 
teleconference access is provided for the public’s convenience and in the event that a Director requests 
remote participation due to just cause or emergency circumstances pursuant to Government Code section 
54953(f). Please be advised that if a Director is not participating in the meeting remotely, remote participation 
for members of the public is provided for convenience only and in the event that the Zoom teleconference 
connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Directors reserves the right to conduct the meeting 
without remote access and take action on any agenda item. The public may participate telephonically or 
electronically via the methods below: 
 

Via videoconference at:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82906548567?pwd=aHDQdiIfwsFvJqZBIm6Y6ykBXbHv3O.1  
Meeting ID: 829 0654 8567, Password: 032 

Via teleconference at:  
Call 669-900-9128 and enter: Meeting ID: 829 0654 8567, Password: 032  

Members of the public may comment on any subject over which the District has jurisdiction that is not on the 
meeting agenda during the general Public Comment item of the agenda. Comments related to a specific item 
on the agenda must be reserved until the time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public 

http://naparcd.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82906548567?pwd=aHDQdiIfwsFvJqZBIm6Y6ykBXbHv3O.1


Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2024 2 
 

comment. While members of the public are welcome to address the Board of Directors, under the Brown Act, 
Directors may not deliberate or take action on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen. 

Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing Tatia@NapaRCD.prg by 4:00 P.M. 
on the day prior to the meeting with “Public Comment” as the subject line (for comments related to an 
agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 
corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed after the deadline 
described above will be entered into the record but not read out loud. If authors of the written 
correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should raise their hand and the Chair will call 
upon them at the appropriate time. 

Requests for disability related modifications or accommodations, aids, or services must be made to Tatia 
Wieland, District Secretary, at 707-690-3110 or Tatia@NapaRCD.org during regular business hours at least 48 
hours prior to the time of the meeting.  

 

A. Call to order and roll call – The meeting is to be called to order by the Chair at 8:00 A.M. 

B. Approval of the agenda – The Board will consider approval of the agenda for this 
meeting. 

C. Approval of meeting minutes – The Board will consider approval of minutes from the 
October 10, 2024 regular meeting. 

D. Ratification of District bills – The Board will review and ratify bills approved by the 
Executive Director. 

E. Approval of District bills – The Board will review and consider approval of the District 
bills for October 2024. 

Members of the public may comment on any subject over which the District has jurisdiction 
that is not on the meeting agenda at this time. Comments related to a specific item on the 
agenda must be reserved until the time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites 
public comment. While members of the public are welcome to address the Board of Directors, 
under the Brown Act, Directors may not deliberate or take action on items not on the agenda, 
and generally may only listen. 

mailto:Tatia@NapaRCD.prg
mailto:Tatia@NapaRCD.org


Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2024 3 
 

Presentation by Frances Knapczyk, Program Director, and Ashley Kvitek, Community 
Engagement Project Manager about recent planning to bring Napa RCD’s youth education 
programs in accordance with the 2024-2029 Strategic Plan. 

All items on the consent calendar are considered ministerial or non-substantive and subject to 
a single motion approval. With the concurrence of the Chair, a Director may request 
discussion of an item on the consent calendar. 

A. Ratify Agreement No. 2024029 with San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science 
Center. 

Napa RCD wishes to obtain assistance with developing a scope and budget for a phased 
Napa County Forest & Habitat Health Strategy. It desires to partner with San Francisco 
Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center on this effort given their unique experience with 
the North Bay Re-Oaking Strategy and other landscape-scale conservation planning 
projects in the Bay Area. The agreement shall not exceed $25,000. The funding sources 
are the Napa County JPA and Regional Forest and Fire Capacity (RFFC) Grant Program 
Agreement No. 3020-1005 with the California Department of Conservation (DOC). 
Executive Director Patzek signed this Agreement on October 21, 2024. 

B. Ratify Agreement No. 2024030 with North Valley Labor Compliance.  

Napa RCD wishes to obtain professional services from North Valley Labor Compliance to 
support wage compliance for a vegetation management project on Napa Valley College’s 
Mt Veeder Bumpy Camp property. This agreement shall not exceed $1,500. The funding 
source is Agreement No. 2CA0502 with the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
(Cal Fire). Executive Director Patzek signed this Agreement on October 29, 2024. 

C. Authorize Executive Director to execute Agreement No. 24-C25 with the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA). 

NVTA wishes to obtain specialized services from Napa RCD to maintain tree plantings 
during the Summer 2024 through Summer 2027 maintenance season in support of the 
Napa Valley Vine Trail Project. Agreement No. 24-C25 shall not exceed $63,000 and shall 
expire on December 31, 2027. 

D. Authorize Executive Director to execute professional services agreements with 
vegetation management contractors funded by existing agreements.  

Napa RCD wishes to obtain professional services from one or more qualified vegetation 
management contractors identified through a completed Request for Qualifications 
process. The contractor(s) will implement vegetation management activities for the “Napa 
Valley College Forest Health and Wildfire Resilience Project” and/or “Berryessa Forest 
Health and Wildfire Resilience Project.” The “Napa Valley College Forest Health and 
Wildfire Resilience Project” shall not exceed $80,000, is funded through the Department of 



Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Agenda – November 14, 2024 4 
 

Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) Agreement No. 2CA0502, and involves 
implementation of vegetation management activities on Napa Valley College’s Mt Veeder 
Bumpy Camp property. The “Berryessa Forest Health and Wildfire Resilience Project” shall 
not exceed $70,000, is funded through the Napa Valley Vintners Healthy Community Fund 
(NVVHCF) Agreement No. 2023009, and involves implementation of vegetation 
management and acorn planting across three private properties in Berryessa. CEQA 
Notices of Exemption have been filed for both projects.  

E. Authorize Executive Director to execute professional services agreements with 
Dogwood Springs Forestry and LACO Associates.  

Napa RCD wishes to obtain professional services from Dogwood Springs Forestry and 
LACO Associates to support the development of a Cal Fire Forest Health Grant proposal. 
The funding source is the RFFC Grant Program Agreement No. 3020-1005 with the DOC. 

A. Presentation and potential action to support a proposed countywide HCP/NCCP. 
Yvonne Baginski 

A local coalition has been advocating for the development of a habitat conservation plan 
(HCP) or natural community conservation plan (NCCP) covering all of Napa County. This 
coalition is seeking support for this idea. 

B. Updates about the Huichica Creek Riparian & Salt Marsh Restoration Project and 
potential action to establish a new advisory committee. Lucas Patzek 

C. Potential action to adopt Policy No. 2023 titled “Telecommuting and Remote Work” 
and authorizing Executive Director to work with counsel on final review. Lucas Patzek 

D. Updates from the Funding & Visibility Committee.  

a. General updates. Bruce Barge & Lucas Patzek 

b. Updates about the GiveGuide campaign. Frances Knapczyk 

Lucas Patzek (Napa RCD Executive Director) and Evelyn Denzin (NRCS District conservationist) 
will give an update on current Napa RCD and NRCS projects and activities. Directors may also 
provide comments and updates. 

 

https://www.scv-habitatagency.org/149/What-is-an-HCPNCCP
https://www.scv-habitatagency.org/149/What-is-an-HCPNCCP


Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2024 1 
 

 

 

 
 

Bruce 
Barge 

Rainer 
Hoenicke 

Paul 
Asmuth 

Jim 
Lincoln 

Bill 
Pramuk 

Gretchen Stranzl 
McCann 

Karen 
Turjanis 

President Vice 
President 

Director Director Director Director Director 

 

 
Lucas Patzek Corey Utsurogi Tracy Schulze 

Executive Director District Counsel Auditor-Controller 
    

 

A regular meeting of the Napa County Resource Conservation District was called to order at 
8:05 A.M. on Thursday, October 10, 2024 by Vice President Rainer Hoenicke. 

A. Call to order and roll call.  

Directors present included Rainer Hoenicke, Paul Asmuth, Gretchen Stranzl McCann, and 
Karen Turjanis. Director Bruce Barge, Jim Lincoln, and Bill Pramuk were absent. Associate 
Directors Ernie Schlobohm and Bryan Parker were present. Napa RCD staff present 
included Lucas Patzek, Tatia Wieland, Frances Knapczyk, and Monique Byro. District 
Counsel Corey Utsurogi was present. Evelyn Denzin from NRCS was present. 

B. Approval of the agenda. 

Approved the agenda for this meeting.  

MOTION: Stranzl McCann; SECOND: Turjanis; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, 
Turjanis. NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion 
carried. 

C. Approval of meeting minutes. 

Approved minutes from the September 19, 2024 regular meeting.  

MOTION: Turjanis; SECOND: Stranzl McCann; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, 
Turjanis. NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion 
carried. 



Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2024 2 
 

D. Ratification of District bills. 

Ratified bills approved by the Executive Director in the amount of $88,094.19. 

MOTION: Stranzl McCann; SECOND: Turjanis; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, 
Turjanis. NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion 
carried. 

No comments from the public. 

Deborah Elliott, Climate Action Management Analyst for the City of Napa, presented the 
City’s climate priorities and programs. She reported on the City of Napa’s current focus of 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions by adding electric vehicle charging stations, improving 
building efficiency, engaging the community, sustainable purchasing, and compost 
implementation. She also presented on The Countywide Climate Action Committee (CAC) and 
the Napa County Regional Climate Action Plan as a roadmap for climate resilience.  

Approved consent calendar. 

MOTION: Stranzl McCann; SECOND: Asmuth; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, 
Turjanis. NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion 
carried. 

A. Authorize Executive Director to execute Right of Entry Agreements for 
implementation projects funded by the Napa Valley Vintners Healthy Community 
Fund Agreement No. 2023009. 

B. Authorize Executive Director to execute Right of Entry Agreement with Napa Valley 
College.  

A. Reappointment of three Associate Directors.  

Reappoint Chris Carpenter, Bryan Parker, and Lucio Perez as Associate Directors. 

MOTION: Turjanis; SECOND: Stranzl McCann; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, 
Turjanis. NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion 
carried. 

B. Submittal of CEQA Notice of Exemptions (NOE) authorized.  



Napa County Resource Conservation District – Regular Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2024 3 
 

Authorize the submittal of Notice of Exemptions for the “Napa Valley College Forest 
Health and Wildfire Resilience Project” and the “Berryessa Forest Health and Wildfire 
Resilience Project.” 

MOTION: Asmuth; SECOND: Turjanis; AYES: Hoenicke, Asmuth, Stranzl McCann, Turjanis. 
NOES: None; ABSENT: Barge, Lincoln, Pramuk; ABSTENSIONS: None. Motion carried. 

C. Presentation of District financial reports.  

Executive Director Lucas Patzek presented trends in funding sources, staff and consulting 
levels, cash reserves, and community contributions. Tatia Wieland presented a cash on 
hand report including deferred revenue and accounts receivable. 

D. Updates from the Funding & Visibility Committee.  

Frances Knapczyk presented on community engagement updates, education programs, 
Coastal Cleanup Day, The Watershed Symposium, and recent tabling events. 

Lucas Patzek (Napa RCD Executive Director) spoke about a meeting request from U.S. 
Representative Mike Thompson. 

Evelyn Denzin (NRCS District conservationist) shared that NRCS are sending out notices for 
applications, including Climate-Smart Agriculture practices. 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:32 A.M. 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting for the Board of Directors of the Napa County Resource 
Conservation District is November 14, 2024. 

 



       Page 1 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

 

NAPA COUNTY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

AGREEMENT NO. 2024029 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between NAPA COUNTY RESOURCE 

CONSERVATION DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as “NCRCD”) and the San Francisco 

Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" or 

“SFEI/ASC”). 

 

WHEREAS, NCRCD is authorized by Public Resources Code section 9408 to enter into 

agreements with federal or state agencies to receive funds, and to enter into agreements with 

private persons to cooperatively expend funds, in furtherance of NCRCD purposes, and is 

further authorized by Public Resources Code section 9412 to provide technical assistance to 

private landowners to support projects that minimize soil and related resource degradation; and 

 

WHEREAS, NCRCD has the need of assistance in developing a scope and budget for a phased 

Napa County Forest & Habitat Health Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has demonstrated experience and expertise in the performance of 

such service and has agreed to assist NCRCD, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I. STATEMENT OF THE WORK 

CONTRACTOR shall perform services in accordance with its proposal entitled SCOPE OF 

WORK, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

 

ARTICLE II. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

The period of performance of this agreement will be from October 21, 2024 through January 

31, 2025 unless extended by mutual agreement or terminated in accordance with Article IX 

TERMINATION. 

 

ARTICLE III. COST AND PAYMENT 

A. NCRCD agrees to pay for the direct and indirect cost of work of the agreement to a 

maximum amount of $25,000.00 in accordance with the budget attached hereto as 

Exhibit B. 

 

B. Invoices shall be emailed to: accounting@naparcd.org 

 

ARTICLE IV. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

A. The work will be under the direction of CONTRACTOR’s principal investigator as shown 

in part B. 



       Page 2 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

 

B. Questions regarding technical matters relating to this contract should be addressed to: 

  

Agency SFEI/ASC NCRCD 

Name Melissa Foley Alison Blodorn 

Title Principal Investigator Program Manager 

Address 4911 Central Avenue 1303 Jefferson Street Suite 100B 

 Richmond, CA 94804 Napa, CA 94559 

Phone 510-746-7345 707-690-3115 

Email melissaf@sfei.org alison@naparcd.org 

 

C. No substitution may be made for CONTRACTOR’s principal investigator or technical 

matter contact without the prior written concurrence of NCRCD. 

 

D. The contacts for business matters relating to the work performed hereunder are: 

 

Agency SFEI/ASC NCRCD 

Name Meredith Lofthouse Tatia Wieland 

Title Contracts Associate III Accounting & Administrative Specialist 

Address 4911 Central Ave. 1303 Jefferson Street Suite 100B 

 Richmond, CA 94804 Napa, CA 94559 

Phone 510-746-7357 707-361-7320 

Email meredithl@sfei.org tatia@naparcd.org; 
accounting@naparcd.org 

  

 

ARTICLE V. AUDIT 

NCRCD will have the right to audit CONTRACTOR’s invoices and all supporting documents for 

purposes of compliance with this agreement during the term of this agreement and for a period 

of three years after final payment under this agreement. 

 

ARTICLE VI. INDEMNIFICATION 

NCRCD and CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold the other Party, their officers, 

directors, employees and agents harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense 

(including reasonable attorneys' fees), demands, actions, costs, or claims for injury or damages 



       Page 3 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

of any kind or nature arising out of this agreement except such loss or damage which was 

caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the other Party. 

 

ARTICLE VII. DELAYS 

A. If for any reason CONTRACTOR cannot deliver any interim or final deliverable by the 

date specified in the Scope of Work, CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the 

Principal Investigator.  If the Principal Investigator believes that CONTRACTOR has 

taken all reasonable steps necessary to submit deliverables by the due date, the 

Principal Investigator may grant an extension of time without penalty.  No extension will 

be deemed to have been granted unless made in writing. 

 

B. Any substantial delay in submission of deliverables may result in termination by default 

as spelled out in ARTICLE IX. TERMINATION. 

 

ARTICLE VIII. FORCE MAJEURE 

If lack of performance by CONTRACTOR is caused by fire, flood, earthquake, catastrophic 

storm, act of war, epidemic, quarantine, or strike involving significant damage to 

CONTRACTOR’S facilities or fatality or serious illness of key personnel, no penalties shall be 

assessed.  In the event of such occurrence, CONTRACTOR shall notify Principal Investigator at 

the earliest practicable time and shall indicate whether and when deliverables can be submitted.  

If deliverables will be delayed more than 90 days beyond the due date, NCRCD may terminate 

the contract for convenience, and shall make an equitable adjustment as specified in ARTICLE 

IX. TERMINATION. 

 

ARTICLE IX. TERMINATION 

Either party may suspend or terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days advance written 

notice to the other party.  If this agreement is suspended or terminated not due to the fault of 

CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR will be paid for services it satisfactorily performed to the date 

of suspension or termination, conditional upon delivery of all products to NCRCD and their 

approval by NCRCD. In no event will CONTRACTOR be entitled to the recovery of damages 

arising out of or related to the suspension or termination of this agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X. DISPUTES 

Any dispute arising under this contract that is not settled by agreement of the parties may be 

settled by mediation, arbitration, or other appropriate legal proceedings.  Pending any decision, 

appeal or judgment in such proceedings or the settlement of any dispute arising under this 

agreement, CONTRACTOR shall proceed diligently with the performance of this contract. 

 

ARTICLE XI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

CONTRACTOR and its employees, consultants, agents, or independent subcontractors will 

perform all services under this agreement as independent contractors.  Nothing in this 

agreement will be deemed to create an employer-employee or principal-agent relationship 

between NCRCD and CONTRACTOR’s employees, consultants, agents and lower tier 

subawardees will not by virtue of any services provided under this agreement, be entitled to 



       Page 4 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

participate, as an employee or otherwise, in or under any employee benefit plan of NCRCD or 

any other employment right or benefit available to or enjoyed by NCRCD.  

 

ARTICLE XII. SUBCONTRACTING 

CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract all or any portion of the work covered by this agreement to 

any subcontractor other than those identified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), without prior 

written agreement by the NCRCD Principal Investigator.  NCRCD shall not approve any 

invoices submitted for payment that include work by any subcontractor, unless such prior written 

agreement has been obtained.  CONTRACTOR shall require each of its subcontractors to 

adhere to the terms of this agreement. 

 

ARTICLE XIII. DEBARMENT 

Neither CONTRACTOR, nor any officer or controlling interest-holder of said CONTRACTOR, is 

currently, or has been previously, on any debarred bidder's list maintained by the United States 

Government. 

 

ARTICLE XIV. GOVERNING LAW 

This agreement will be governed and construed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

ARTICLE XV. SPECIAL PROVISIONS  

Additional provisions set forth in the attached Exhibit C, if applicable, are incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

ARTICLE XVI. NONDISCRIMINATION 

A. During the performance of this agreement, CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall 
not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of sex, sexual orientation, race, color, religious creed, 
marital status, denial of family and medical care leave, ancestry, national origin, medical 
condition (cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above), and disability (mental 
and physical) including HIV and AIDS, and denial of pregnancy disability leave or 
reasonable accommodation. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall ensure that 
the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free 
from such discrimination and harassment. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall 
comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, 
§12900 et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code 
Regs, tit. 2, §7285.0 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and 
Housing Commission implementing Government Code, §12990 (a)–(f), are incorporated 
into this contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full (Cal. Code 
Regs, tit. 2, §7285.0 et seq.). CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall give written 
notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a 
collective bargaining or other agreement. 
 

B.   Executive Order 11246 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Executive Order 11246, as 
amended, relating to equal employment opportunity and as supplemented by regulations 
at 41 C.F.R part 60. The provisions of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 41 C.F.R. 
§ 60-1.4 are herein incorporated by reference. 



       Page 5 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

 

C.   Equal Opportunity Employer Provisions 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of 41 C.F.R § 60-741.5 & 41 C.F.R. § 60-
300.5, which are herein incorporated by reference. 
 

CONTRACTOR shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this article in 

all subcontracts to perform work under contract. 

 

ARTICLE XVII. SCOPE OF THIS AGREEMENT 

This agreement states the entire contract between the parties as of the date of final signature 

below in respect to the subject matter of the agreement and supersedes any previous written or 

oral representations, statements, negotiations, or agreements.  This agreement may be 

modified only by written amendment executed by the authorized representatives of both parties 

with the exception of no-cost time extensions, in which case electronic correspondence is made 

acceptable. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed by 

their duly authorized representatives. 

 

 

For the Napa County Resource Conservation 
District (NCRCD): 

For CONTRACTOR: 

  

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Lucas Patzek, Executive Director Warner Chabot, Executive Director 

  

Date: ___________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

 

  

10/21/2024



       Page 6 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

 

Exhibit A: Scope of Work 

Napa County Forest & Habitat Health Strategy 

SFEI Scope of work 
Goal: Develop a scope of work and budget for a phased Napa County Forest & Habitat Health 
Strategy that provides practical information on existing conditions and how to foster forest and 
other terrestrial habitat resilience under a changing climate through management choices.  
 
Task 1: Information Gathering 

• Conduct basic research and information gathering on prior/existing/upcoming efforts in 
Napa County to refine the goals of and approach for developing the Forest & Habitat 
Health Strategy, including key stressors to address in the Strategy.    

• Conduct interviews with Napa RCD and up to four local partners and experts identified 
by Napa RCD (e.g., Land Trust of Napa County, Napa Firewise, Napa County Fire 
Administration, local Registered Professional Forester and/or botanist) to better 
understand local needs and how the product will be used by Napa RCD and partners. 

 
Task 2: Scope and Budget Development 

• Develop a phased scope and budget for strategy development that can feed into fund 
development.  

• Identify potential roles for SFEI and partner organizations, where possible.  
• Meet with Napa RCD to discuss progress and get feedback on draft products. 
• Assist Napa RCD in identifying government funding sources to support the development 

of the Forest & Habitat Health Strategy. 
 
Task 3: Project Management and Internal Coordination 

• Manage project deliverables, complete progress reports, track the budget, and submit 
invoices.  

• Meetings with SFEI staff to coordinate and review work. 
 

Timeline 

Task Timeline 

Information Gathering  November 22, 2024 

Scope and Budget Development  December 31, 2024 

Project Management  January 31, 2025 

 

  



       Page 7 of 7 

 

PSA: Napa County Resource Conservation District & San Francisco Estuary Institute/Aquatic Science Center  
NCRCD Agreement No. 2024029 

Exhibit B: Budget 

 

 

 

Budget 

Task Hours Budget Deliverable 

Information Gathering 64 $11,777 Summary of interviews and document review 

Scope and Budget 
Development 

52 $11,130 
Phased scope and budget for the Forest 
Health Strategy 

Project Management 11 $2,093 Invoices and progress report (if needed) 

TOTAL 127 $25,000  

 

 

Categorical Rate Table 
 

Category 
Inclusive Hourly Rate 

Thru 6/25 

Admin $125.61 

Assoc Sci I&II/Assoc Tech Specialist I&II $131.90 

Environmental/Tech Analyst $111.19 

Manager/Sr Scientist I-IV/Sr Tech Specialist I-IV $231.16 

Program Director/Managing Sr Scientist/Managing Director $270.90 

Scientist I/Tech Specialist I $144.67 

Scientist II/Tech Specialist II $159.83 

Sr Environmental/Sr Tech Analyst $117.71 

 

 



29th                 October





















10/29/2024









24-C25 NCRCD/ryk Page 1 of 10 

 

 

 
 

 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AGREEMENT NO. 24-C25 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this

  
day of 

   , 2024, by and between the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, a joint 
powers agency under the laws of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “NVTA”, 
and Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRCD), a special district of the State 
of California, whose mailing address is 1303 Jefferson Street, Suite 500B, Napa, CA 
94559, hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”; 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to obtain specialized services to provide maintenance 
services of tree plantings during the Summer 2024 through Summer 2027 maintenance 
season in support of the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is willing and has been determined to be qualified to 

provide such specialized services to NVTA under the terms and conditions set forth 
herein; 

 
TERMS 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, NVTA hereby engages the services of CONTRACTOR, and 

CONTRACTOR agrees to serve NVTA in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth herein: 

 
1. Term of the Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date 
first above written and shall expire on December 31, 2027, unless earlier terminated as 
provided herein. 

 
2. Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall provide NVTA those services set forth 
in CONTRACTOR’s proposal (EXHIBIT A), attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference herein. EXHIBIT A is provided solely to describe the services to be provided. 
Any terms contained in EXHIBIT A that add to, vary, or conflict with the terms of this 
Agreement are null and void. 

 
3. Compensation. 

(a) Rates. In consideration of CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of the promised 
work, NVTA shall pay CONTRACTOR at the rate set forth in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference herein. 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 2 of 10 

 

 

 
(b) Expenses. Authorized expenses listed in Exhibit B will be reimbursed by 

NVTA in accordance with federal and state guidelines. 

(c) Maximum Amount. Notwithstanding subparagraphs (a) and (b), the 
maximum payments under this Agreement shall not exceed a total of $63,000 for 
professional services and expenses; provided, however, such amounts shall not be 
construed as guaranteed sums, and compensation shall be based upon services actually 
rendered. 

 
4. Method of Payment. 

(a) Invoices. All payments for compensation shall be made only upon 
presentation by CONTRACTOR to NVTA of an itemized billing invoice in a form 
acceptable to the NVTA Director Administration, Finance and Policy which indicates, at 
a minimum, CONTRACTOR's name, address, Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 
Number, itemization of the hours worked or, where compensation is on a per-task basis, 
a description of the tasks completed during the billing period, the person(s) actually 
performing the services and the position(s) held by such person(s), and the approved 
hourly or task rate. CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices not more often than every 30 
days to NVTA Accounts Payable at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559, or electronically 
to ap@nvta.ca.gov, who after review and approval as to form and content, shall submit 
the invoice to the NVTA Director of Administration, Finance and Policy no later than fifteen 
(15) calendar days following receipt. 

 
5. Independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR shall perform this Agreement as an 
independent contractor. CONTRACTOR and the officers, agents and employees of 
CONTRACTOR are not, and shall not be deemed, NVTA employees for any purpose, 
including workers' compensation and employee benefits. CONTRACTOR shall, at 
CONTRACTOR’s own risk and expense, determine the method and manner by which 
duties imposed on CONTRACTOR by this Agreement shall be performed; provided, 
however, that NVTA may monitor the work performed by CONTRACTOR. NVTA shall 
not deduct or withhold any amounts whatsoever from the compensation paid to 
CONTRACTOR, including, but not limited to amounts required to be withheld for state 
and federal taxes. As between the parties to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be 
solely responsible for all such payments. 

 
6. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect 
throughout the term of this Agreement, and thereafter as to matters occurring during the 
term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage: 

 
(a) Workers' Compensation insurance. CONTRACTOR will provide workers' 

compensation insurance as required by law during the term of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide workers’ compensation insurance for the performance of 
any of the CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement; including but not limited to, 
coverage for workers’ compensation and employer's liability and a waiver of subrogation 
and shall provide NVTA with certification of all such coverages upon request by NVTA’s 
Risk Manager. 

mailto:ap@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 3 of 10 

 

 

 

 
(b) Liability insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force 

and effect during the term of this Agreement the following liability insurance coverage’s, 
issued by a company licensed (admitted) to transact business in the State of California 
and/or having a A.M. Best rating of A VII or better: 

 
1. General Liability. Commercial general liability [CGL] insurance 

coverage (personal injury and property damage) of not less than ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence, covering liability or claims 
for any personal injury, including death, to any person and/or damage to the property of 
any person arising from the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any officer, agent, or 
employee of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. 

 
2. Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions. Professional 

liability/errors and omissions insurance for all activities of CONTRACTOR arising out of 
or in connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
($1,000,000) per claim. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. Comprehensive 
automobile liability insurance (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) on owned, hired, 
leased and non-owned vehicles used in conjunction with CONTRACTOR's business of 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per 
occurrence. 

 
(c) Certificates. All insurance coverage’s referenced in 6(b), above, shall be 

evidenced by one or more certificates of coverage or, with the consent of NVTA's Risk 
Manager, demonstrated by other evidence of coverage acceptable to NVTA's Risk 
Manager, which shall be filed by CONTRACTOR with NVTA’s Deputy Executive Director 
prior to commencement of performance of any of CONTRACTOR's duties. 

 
7. Hold Harmless/Defense/Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify NVTA 
and the officers, agents, employees and volunteers of NVTA from and against any and all 
liability, claims, losses, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, for 
personal injury (including death) or damage to property, arising from, pertaining to, or 
relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR or its 
officers, agents, employees, volunteers, contractors and subcontractors in rendering 
services under this Agreement, excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, 
damages or expenses arising from the sole negligence or willful acts of NVTA or its 
officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or other contractors or their subcontractors. Each 
party shall notify the other party immediately in writing of any claim or damage related to 
activities performed under this Agreement. The parties shall cooperate with each other in 
the investigation and disposition of any claim arising out of the activities under this 
Agreement. 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 4 of 10 

8. Employee Character and Fitness. CONTRACTOR accepts responsibility for
determining and approving the character and fitness of its employees (including
volunteers, agents or representatives) to provide the services required of CONTRACTOR
under this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Paragraph,
CONTRACTOR, shall hold NVTA and its officers, agents, and employees harmless from
any liability for injuries or damages resulting from a breach of this provision or
CONTRACTOR’s actions in this regard.

9. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party for any reason
and at any time by giving no less than thirty (30) days written notice of such termination
and specifying the effective date thereof. NVTA hereby authorizes the NVTA Executive
Director to make all decisions and take all actions required under this Paragraph to
terminate the Agreement on behalf of NVTA. CONTRACTOR hereby authorizes the
NRCD Executive Director to make all decisions and take all actions required under this
Paragraph to terminate the Agreement in behalf of CONTRACTOR. .

10. Notices. All notices required or authorized by this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be delivered in person, electronic mail, or by deposit in the United States mail,
by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If receipt of notice is refused
by NVTA or if notice is undeliverable due to NVTA’s failure to provide a change of
address, notice shall be deemed waived and CONTRACTOR may proceed as though
notice were accomplished.

NVTA 
Kate Miller 
Executive Director  
625 Burnell Street        
Napa, CA 94559    

CONTRACTOR 
 Lucas Patzek 
Executive Director 

1303 Jefferson Street, Suite 500B    
Napa, CA 94559 

11. Amendment/Modification.

(a) Except as specifically provided herein, this Agreement may be modified or
amended only in writing and with prior written consent signed by both Parties. Failure of 
CONTRACTOR to secure such authorization in writing in advance of performing any of 
the extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver of any and all rights to adjustment in 
the contract price or contract time and no compensation shall be paid for such extra 
work. 

(b) The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR’s ability to deliver
the services described in Exhibit A are contingent on CONTRACTOR’s on-going right of 
entry and access to the subject sites.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
subparagraph (a), this Agreement may be unilaterally modified by CONTRACTOR to 
remove any of the subject sites upon written notice to NVTA if access to any of the 
subject sites is denied, preventing CONTRACTOR from completing the services 
described in Exhibit A at that subject site.   



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 5 of 10 

(c) NCRCD’s Executive Director is delegated the authority to modify this
Agreement in accordance with subparagraph (b), but may exercise such authority only 
after consultation with the NCRCD Board.   

12. Interpretation; Venue. The headings used herein are for reference only. The
terms of the Agreement are set out in the text under the headings. This Agreement shall
be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to the choice of law or
conflicts. This Agreement is made in Napa County, California. The venue for any legal
action in state court filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of interpreting
or enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of California,
County of Napa, a unified court. The appropriate venue for arbitration, mediation or similar
legal proceedings under this Agreement shall be Napa County, California; however,
nothing in this sentence shall obligate either party to submit to mediation or arbitration
any dispute arising under this Agreement.

13. Compliance with Laws. CONTRACTOR shall observe and comply with all
currently applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, codes, and as amended
from time to time. Such laws shall include, but not be limited to the following, except
where prohibited by law:

(a) Non-Discrimination. During the performance of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractor’s shall not deny the benefits thereof to any person 
on the basis of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or 
ethnic group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental 
disability, physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), nor 
shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or ethnic 
group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental disability, 
physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), or use of family 
care leave. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of employees 
and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination or harassment. In addition 
to the foregoing general obligations, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated there under (Title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 
7285.0, et seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the 
Government Code (sections 11135-11139.5) and any state or local regulations adopted 
to implement any of the foregoing, as such statutes and regulations may be amended 
from time to time. To the extent this Agreement subcontracts to CONTRACTOR services 
or works required of NVTA by the State of California pursuant to Agreement between 
NVTA and the State, the applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code section 12990 (a) through (f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are expressly 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in 
full, and CONTRACTOR and any of its subcontractor’s shall give written notice of their 
obligations there under to labor organizations with which they have collective bargaining 
or other agreements. 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 6 of 10 

(b) Documentation of Right to Work. CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by the
requirements of the Immigration and Control Reform Act pertaining to assuring that all 
newly-hired employees of CONTRACTOR performing any services under this Agreement 
have a legal right to work in the United States of America, that all required documentation 
of such right to work is inspected, and that INS Form 1-9 (as it may be amended from 
time to time) is completed and on file for each employee. CONTRACTOR shall make the 
required documentation available upon request to NVTA for inspection. 

(c) Inclusion in Subcontracts. To the extent any of the services required of
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement are subcontracted to a third party; CONTRACTOR 
shall include all of the provisions of this Section in all such subcontracts as obligations of 
the subcontractor. 

14. Taxes. CONTRACTOR agrees to file federal and state tax returns or applicable
withholding documents and to pay all applicable taxes or make all required withholdings
on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to
make such withholdings and/or pay such taxes and other obligations including, without
limitation, state and federal income and FICA taxes. CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify
and hold NVTA harmless from any liability it may incur to the United States or the State
of California as a consequence of CONTRACTOR’s failure to pay or withhold, when due,
all such taxes and obligations. In the event that NVTA is audited for compliance regarding
any withholding or other applicable taxes or amounts, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish
NVTA with proof of payment of taxes or withholdings on those earnings.

15. Access to Records/Retention. NVTA, any federal or state grantor agency
funding all or part of the compensation payable hereunder, the State Controller, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or the duly authorized representatives of any
of the above, shall have access to any books, documents, papers and records of
CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to the subject matter of this Agreement for
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. Except where
longer retention is required by any federal or state law, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all
required records for at least three (3) years after NVTA makes final payment for any other
work authorized hereunder and all pending matters are closed, whichever is later.

16. Authority to Contract. CONTRACTOR and NVTA each warrant hereby that they
are legally permitted and otherwise have the authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement.

17. Covenant of No Undisclosed Conflict. The parties to the Agreement
acknowledge that they are aware of the provisions of Government Code section 1090, et
seq., and section 87100, et seq., relating to conflict of interest of public officers and
employees.

18. Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed to create any rights in third parties and the parties do not intend to create such
rights.



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 7 of 10 

19. Attorney's Fees. In the event that either party commences legal action of any
kind or character to either enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to obtain damages
for breach thereof, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to all costs and
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in connection with such action.

20. Entirety of Contract. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties relating to the subject of this Agreement and supersedes all previous
agreements, promises, representations, understandings and negotiations, whether
written or oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same instrument. Documents executed, scanned, and transmitted electronically and
electronic signatures shall be deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement
and all matters related thereto, with such scanned and electronic signatures having the
same legal effect as original signatures.

22. Extensions Authorized. The Executive Director is the delegated authority to
execute amendments to extend the term of this Agreement, if needed from time to time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the parties hereto as 
of the date first above written. 

“NVTA” “CONTRACTOR” 
Napa County Resource Conservation 
District 

By 

KATE MILLER, Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By______________________________ 
    NVTA General Counsel 

By 

LUCAS PATZEK, Executive Director 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

CONTRACTOR (NCRCD) shall provide NVTA with the following services: 

I. SCOPE OF WORK.

As a part of NVTA’s mitigation for the Napa Valley Vine Trail, NCRCD conducted
community oak plantings (hereinafter “plantings”) during the 2022-2023 planting
season. A total of 269 plantings were completed across three sites: Alston Park
(70 plantings), Skyline Wilderness Park (83 plantings), and the St. Helena
Community Forest (116 plantings) (together, the “subject sites”).

NCRCD is being brought on in a fee-for-service capacity to support maintenance
of the 269 plantings for over the Summer 2024 through Summer 2027
maintenance season (i.e. a total of four (4) seasons). This includes the following
activities:

• Planning maintenance activities at each site, either to be conducted
through volunteer maintenance days or subcontracting crews to carry
out the maintenance directly. A minimum of three (3) maintenance
days (one (1) maintenance day per site) per season, including:

o Flyer development, volunteer outreach and communications (for
volunteer supported maintenance activities)

o Subcontracting with and overseeing vegetation management crews
(for crew supported maintenance activities)

o Acquiring materials and prepping site for maintenance
o Coordinating with land managers/owners at sites

• Implementing maintenance activities at each site annually through volunteer
maintenance days or subcontracted crews. A minimum of implementing
three (3) maintenance days (one (1) maintenance day per site) per season,
including:

o Weeding
o Mulching
o Repairing cages and stakes as needed

NVTA shall be responsible for monitoring of the plantings and will provide 
NCRCD with all monitoring data collected. 

 NCRCD shall inform NVTA on the seasonal maintenance performance schedule. 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 9 of 10 

EXHIBIT B 

COST SHEET / FEE SCHEDULE 

The following hourly compensation rates are effective starting 7/1/2024 for staff of the 

Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRD) according to a salary schedule 

adopted by its Board of Directors. 

Position Classification Hourly Rate 

Coordinator $62.90 

Environmental Scientist II $92.81 

Environmental Scientist III $115.48 

Executive Director $121.72 

Forestry Project Manager $86.76 

Forestry Program Manager II $91.15 

Office Manager II $98.06 

Program Director $117.67 

Program Manager, Conservation $121.22 

Program Manager $108.91 

Project Manager, Community Engagement $84.70 

Project Manager, Conservation $87.85 

Project Manager, Education $89.14 

Sustainable Agriculture Program Manager II $92.05 

NCRCD adjusts its billable rates annually on July 1 and whenever there is a change in an 
employee’s underlying direct pay rate. Whenever there is a change to any of these rates, 
or if additional positions are added, NCRCD will notify NVTA immediately, and with 
NVTA’s approval, NCRCD may implement such adjusted rates. 

The total payment for services and expenses under this Agreement shall not exceed 
$63,000.00. Expenses may include labor, maintenance materials costs, subcontractor 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Vine Trail Tree Mitigation and Maintenance Svcs 

24-C25 NCRCD/rev.092024/ryk Page 10 of 10 

expenses, vehicle mileage reimbursement (billed at the State’s current mileage rate – see 
link below), as well as other Project specific expenses for which NCRCD receives 
approval from NVTA prior to performance. 

Vehicle Mileage Rate. Vehicle mileage associated with the Project may be billed at the 
State’s current mileage rate for the year. Current rates can be viewed at the following 
website link: https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx 

Maximum payments under this Agreement shall not be construed as guaranteed sums. 

Optional or as needed work to be performed by CONTRACTOR and their associated 
costs must be approved by NVTA prior to performance. 

https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx


What is an HCP/NCCP?

Habitat Conservation Plan 
A habitat conservation plan (HCP) is a document that meets federal Endangered Species Act (ESA) requirements and enables
local agencies to allow projects and activities to occur in endangered species’ habitats. In exchange, those projects and activities
must incorporate HCP-prescribed measures to avoid, minimize, or compensate for adverse effects on natural communities and
endangered species.

An HCP extends its federally granted endangered species permit—known as take authorization—to all projects and activities it
covers. Loosely defined, take means to injure or kill a listed species or alter the habitat on which it depends. Although the ESA
prohibits take of listed species, under some circumstances take can be authorized by permit to agencies, developers, and other
entities engaged in otherwise lawful activities. The HCP process recognizes the impact of land use activities and establishes a
program to provide for a net benefit to specific species (i.e., covered species).

Without a regional HCP in place, local governments, private entities, or individuals evaluate projects and activities individually in
consultation with a variety of federal and state regulators to mitigate for potential impacts on species. This is a lengthy process
that can cost all parties considerable time and money. This approach also does less to protect wildlife because project- or
activity-specific mitigation measures result in land being set aside on a piecemeal basis, resulting in fragmented habitats that are
less ecologically viable and also more difficult to manage.

Regional HCPs are a relatively new tool for protecting endangered and threatened species and represent an important
integration of land use planning, regional and interagency coordination, and habitat conservation. HCPs offer a more efficient
process for protecting the environment and processing applications for local projects and activities that may affect endangered
species and their habitats.

The HCP is the federal counterpart to the State natural community conservation plan, or NCCP.

Natural Community Conservation Plan 

A natural community conservation plan (NCCP) is the State counterpart to the federal habitat conservation plan (HCP).  It
provides a means of complying with the Natural Community Conservation Plan Act (NCCP Act) and securing take authorization
at the State level. The NCCP Act is broader than federal ESA and the California Endangered Species Act (CESA). The primary
objective of the NCCP program is to conserve natural communities at the ecosystem scale while accommodating compatible
land uses. To be approved by the the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, an NCCP must provide for the conservation of
species and protection and management of natural communities in perpetuity within the area covered by permits.

NCCPs are different from HCPs because the NCCP Act requires that conservation actions improve the overall condition of a
species, whereas HCPs typically only require avoidance of a net adverse impact on a species. And while an HCP can be applied
at a project-by-project or regional scale, an NCCP must be applied at the regional scale to promote the long-term recovery of
species, protection of habitat and natural communities, and diversity of species at the landscape-level.  Thus the State
requirements go “above and beyond” the federal mitigation requirements. 

View the California Department of Fish and Wildlife's webpage about Santa Clara County's NCCP here

Select Language  ▼

https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Planning/NCCP/Plans/Santa-Clara








Location: Huichica Creek, South Napa County 
Phase: Planning
Action: Restoration of 70 acres: 19 acres of tidal marsh habitat, 23 acres of 
estuarine habitat, and 28 acres of freshwater marsh and riparian habitat

Napa County Resource Conservation District
1303 Jefferson St, Suite 500B, Napa, CA 94559
www.NapaRCD.org, (707) 690-3110

Huichica Creek Riparian & Salt Marsh 
Restoration Project



Lucas Patzek
Executive Director
Napa County Resource Conservation District
lucas@naparcd.org

Candace Reynolds
Senior Biologist/Restoration Ecologist
HANA Resources
candacer@hanaresources.com

Mitchell Swanson
Senior Geomorphologist
Dudek
mswanson@dudek.com

Presenters



Project Location



N

Total project area = 70 ac

Habitats to be restored:
- 28 ac of riparian & freshwater marsh
- 23 ac of estuarine
- 19 ac of tidal marsh

Property ownership:
- Napa RCD (public)
- CDFW (public)
- Beckstoffer Vineyards (private)
- Chandon (private)

N

Project Area



Infrastructure constraints:

- Roads: Duhug/Ramal Road and stream 
crossing; private access road

- Rail line: SMART
- Buildings: residential and other
- Utilities: recycled water line, power 

lines

N

Project Area



Project Background



N

Project Component: Restoration Planning



Project Component: Community Engagement

Wild Napa Youth ProgramTechnical & Cultural Work 
Group, Landowner Engagement

Community Workshops & 
Outreach Events



Habitat Restoration:
• Restores 70 acres of tidal marsh, estuarine habitat, and freshwater marsh and riparian habitat
• Supports key species like Steelhead, California Black Rail, and Salt-Marsh Harvest Mouse

Flood Management & Climate Adaptation:
• Implements nature-based flood management in an area prone to flooding
• Enhances climate resilience with room for habitats to naturally shift in response to sea level rise

Public Access & Community Engagement:
• Creates opportunities for residents and students to participate in the restoration process
• Improves recreational, educational, and cultural access for surrounding communities

SFBJV Habitat Goals Alignment



Project Schedule

Task
Estimated 
Completion Date

Project Start Date April 2025

Develop Existing Conditions, Setting, Opportunities, Constraints November 2025

Develop Conceptual Alternatives & ID Preferred Alternatives December 2025

Develop and Prepare Draft & Final 65% PS&E November 2026

Data Collection July 2027

Regulatory Permitting (BRITT) July 2027

NEPA & CEQA Compliance July 2027

Habitat Restoration Plan July 2027

Community engagement ongoing throughout project.



 

1303 Jefferson St., Ste. 500B, Napa, California 94559 
(707) 690-3110, NapaRCD.org 

 
 

Resolution No. 2024-04 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Napa County Resource Conservation District (NCRCD) is authorized by 

Public Resource Code 9420 to appoint advisory committees to assist in coordinating 
conservation programs and activities, and to share information relating to the functions or 
purposes of the district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, NCRCD established the Huichica Creek Sustainable Vineyard & Orchard 
Advisory Committee by Resolution No. 2016-07 on November 10, 2016 for the purpose of 
providing input to the operation and long-term goals of NCRCD’s Huichica Creek Sustainable 
Vineyard & Orchard Demonstration property; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCRCD has determined, following a visioning and public solicitation 
process (i.e., Request for Ideas), that the best use of its property going forward is a complete 
restoration of native habitat, continued public access, and continued opportunities for 
outreach, education, and research. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 

1. NCRCD’s Board of Directors establishes a Huichica Creek Preserve Advisory 
Committee to provide input related to restoration planning, implementation, 
maintenance and monitoring, public access, community engagement and research 
programming, and other aspects of its property. 
 

2. The Committee shall be composed of members appointed by NCRCD’s Board of 
Directors every two years on the January of the odd-numbered year, or following an 
unexpected vacancy, as follows: 

a. No more than three NCRCD Directors; 
b. Interested NCRCD Associate Directors; and 
c. Up to five members of the public with the knowledge and expertise needed to 

advance the goals of this property. 
 

3. A quorum of the Committee shall be at least one (1) member from group (a) and two 
(2) members from groups (a) through (c) of Paragraph 2, above. 



 

1303 Jefferson St., Ste. 500B, Napa, California 94559 
(707) 690-3110, NapaRCD.org 

 
 

Resolution No. 2024-04 

 
4. The Committee shall be a standing committee for purposes of the Brown Act 

(Government Code 54950 et seq.) due to its continuing subject matter jurisdiction, but 
due to nature of the subject matter, all meetings of the Huichica Creek Preserve 
Advisory Committee shall be “Special Meetings,” as defined and regulated by the 
Brown Act. 
 

5. This Resolution replaces Resolution No. 2016-07 in its entirety. 
 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by the 
Board of Directors of the Napa County Resource Conservation District at its regular meeting held 
on the 14th day of November 2024, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

  

  

SIGNED:  

 
BRUCE BARGE, President 
Board of Directors 

 



                         Napa County Resource Conservation District 
 1303 Jefferson St., Ste. 500B 
                         Napa, California 94559 
                         Phone: (707) 252-4189 
                          
                         www.naparcd.org 

 

Promoting responsible watershed management through voluntary community stewardship and technical assistance since 1945 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-07 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NAPA COUNTY 

RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A HUICHICA 

CREEK SUSTAINABLE VINEYARD & ORCHARD ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Napa County Resource Conservation District (RCD) is authorized by Public 

Resource Code 9420 to appoint advisory committees to assist in coordinating conservation programs 

and activities, and to share information relating to the functions or purposes of the district; and  

 

 WHEREAS,  the RCD operates a sustainable agriculture demonstration project on RCD 

owned property in the southern Napa County, hereinafter referred to as “Huichica Creek Sustainable 

Vineyard & Orchard Demonstration”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the foregoing, the Napa County Resource Conservation District 

(RCD), wishes to form an advisory committee for the purpose of providing input to the operation and 

long-term goals of the RCD’s Huichica Creek Sustainable Vineyard & Orchard Demonstration 

property;  

 

 

            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

 

1. The RCD Board hereby establishes a Huichica Creek Sustainable Vineyard & Orchard Advisory 

Committee to provide input related to the operation and long-term goals of the RCD’s program. 

 

2. The committee shall be composed of members appointed by the RCD Board of Directors each 

calendar year, in January, or following an unexpected vacancy, as follows: 

a. No more than three RCD Board Directors; 

b. Interested Associate Directors; and 

c. Up to five members of the public with knowledge in sustainable agriculture and property 

management. 

 

3. A quorum of the committee shall be at least one (1) member from group (a) and two (2) members 

from groups (a) through (c) of Paragraph 2, above.  

 

4. The Huichica Creek Sustainable Vineyard & Orchard Advisory Committee shall be a standing 

committee for purposes of the Brown Act (Government Code 54950 et seq.) due to its continuing 

subject matter jurisdiction, but due to nature of the subject matter, all meetings of the Huichica 

Creek Vineyard & Orchard Advisory Committee shall be “Special Meetings,” as defined and 

regulated by the Brown Act. 

 



 

2 

 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by  

the Board of Directors of the Napa County Resource Conservation District at a regular meeting of  

the Board held on the 10th day of November, 2016, by the following vote: 

 

      AYES:  

 

  NOES:   

 

        ABSENT:   
 
 
 

Signed: _________________________ 

  Beth Painter, Board President, NCRCD 

 

 

ATTEST:  Anna Mattinson, 

Secretary of the Napa County Resource Conservation District 

 

____________________________        

 



  2023 – 1 

Napa County Resource Conservation District 

POLICY MANUAL 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: Telecommuting and Remote Work 
POLICY NUMBER: 2023 
ADOPTED: November 14, 2024 
 

2023.1  Purpose 

Telecommuting provides employees with an opportunity to work from home or an alternate location instead 
of in the District’s office. Telecommuting must be supported by the employee’s supervisor, pre-approved by 
the District’s Executive Director, and cannot be initiated without a signed Telecommuting Agreement 
(Agreement).  

District’s primary work location for all employees is 1303 Jefferson Street, Napa CA  94559 in suites 100B, 
120B, 500B, and 700B. Telecommuting is a voluntary work arrangement, not an entitlement.  

Telecommuting is defined as allowing employees, during their scheduled work hours, to fulfill their job 
responsibilities at a remote location other than their primary work location. 
 
2023.2  Applicability  
 
In order for the Telecommuting Agreement to be in effect, both the District and Employee must desire to 
permit Employee to work remotely and must agree to the terms contained in this Policy by and through the 
Telecommuting Agreement. The decision to permit telecommuting is solely at the discretion of the District.  
Telecommuting is a privilege and may not be appropriate for all employees. 
 
2023.3  District Policies 

Employee agrees to follow all established District policies and procedures as described in the Employee 
Handbook and elsewhere, unless specified differently in this Policy. The implementation of remote work 
should not be construed to change or alter any District policies, such as job responsibilities, benefits and 
District-sponsored insurance coverages, rest periods, overtime, leave time, holidays, pay or other basic 
terms and conditions of employment with the District, as contained in the Employee Handbook. Failure of 
Employee to comply with established District policies and procedures, as well as telecommuting 
requirements, may result in termination of the Telecommuting Agreement. The District reserves the right to 
change or terminate the Telecommuting Agreement at any time, without cause or advance notice.  

2023.4  Safety and Liability 

The Telecommuting Employee (i.e., Telecommuter) is solely responsible for ensuring the safety of their 
alternative work environment, free from hazards or other dangers. The District does not assume any liability 
for loss, damage, or wear of employee-owned equipment, furniture, or other personal property. However, 
because the District is legally obligated to provide its employees with a workplace that is free from hazards 



  2023 – 2 

that might cause serious harm or injury, the District reserves the right to inspect the Telecommuter’s remote 
workspace periodically.  Any such inspection will be preceded by advance notice, and an appointment will 
be scheduled.  

Telecommuters are protected by the District’s workers’ compensation insurance and are required to 
immediately report any injuries that occur while working. The Telecommuter shall be liable for any injuries 
to their family members and/or third parties at or around the Telecommuter’s alternative work environment.  

Telecommuters are expected to attend all required meetings at the District’s offices as requested.  

2023.5  Expense Reimbursement  

Because this remote work arrangement has been voluntarily requested by Employee, travel from the 
Employee’s home to the District’s primary work location is not considered to be a reimbursable travel 
expense. Only travel specifically authorized by the District will be considered business travel subject to 
reimbursement. If a non-exempt hourly employee must travel on behalf of the District, standard California 
travel and overtime regulations will apply.  

2023.6  Equipment Considerations 

The need for telecommuting equipment shall be determined on a case-by-case basis by the District.  
District elects to provide a working laptop computer, monitor, keyboard and mouse for the remote work 
location. Equipment must be approved in advance of purchase. Receipts must be submitted within 30 days 
of purchase for reimbursement. The repair and maintenance of telecommuting equipment is the 
responsibility of the District; the District may track the use of such equipment to ensure it is used solely for 
business purposes and in meeting the goals of the District.  If hardware of software issues arise, it is the 
Employee’s responsibility to contact the District and, if necessary, coordinate a time and meeting location to 
resolve.   

2023.7  Security 

Passwords must be used to secure District confidential information. Security measures must be initiated 
whenever District information is left unattended. Employee must return District equipment and software 
when requested by their supervisor or when employment is terminated. Software provided by the District 
remains the property of the District. Any supplies, equipment or software provided directly by the District 
shall be returned at the end of this Agreement or upon termination of employment. 

2023.8  Liability 

The District will not be liable for damages to Employee's property that result from working remotely. The 
District will not be responsible for operating costs, home maintenance, or any other incidental cost (e.g., 
utilities) whatsoever, associated with the use of Employee's residence when Employee voluntarily chooses 
to work at a remote location. 

The District shall not incur additional costs due to a Telecommuting Agreement. The Telecommuting 
Agreement will specify any costs the District will cover.  All other expenses are the responsibility of the 
Telecommuter.  

2023.9  Remote Availability 



  2023 – 3 

When working remotely, Employee shall maintain normally scheduled work hours and be available during 
office hours, unless approval is granted ahead of time. Availability means the Employee must be able to 
answer the phone or respond to a virtual meeting request within a short period of time, usually 30 minutes 

unless employee is otherwise engaged in work-related meetings, which is the same as if the Employee 
were physically in the office. Company requires that Employee update their calendar to reflect when 
Employee is not available for periods of one hour or longer during office hours. 

2023.10  Telecommuting Agreement  

I have read and understand this Policy. I understand that violations of this Policy may result in disciplinary 
action up to and including termination of employment. I further understand that this Policy may be changed 
or revoked by the District at any time. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Employee’s Signature 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Employee’s Printed Name 

 

 

_____________________________  

Date 

 

 ___________________________________ 

Executive Director’s Signature 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Executive Director’s Printed Name 

 

 

_____________________________  

Date 

 

 
 
 


	11 November 14, 2024 - agenda
	10 October 10, 2024 - minutes
	SFEI_NCRCD_PSA_10.21.2024
	LC contract 10-29-24
	C25_NCRCD_Vine Trail Mitigation_Maintenance Svcs_2024-2027
	What is an HCP_NCCP
	Napa County_ Is it time for a habitat conservation plan_
	Huichica Creek Riparian & Salt Marsh Restoration Project
	2024-04 Huichica Creek Preserve Advisory Committee
	2016-07 HCV Advisory Committee
	2023RCD.Telecommuting.2024.FINAL

